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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
A27 Infraservices Limited

Gurugram

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of A2Z Infraservices
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by The Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its financial performance (including other comprehensive income) and
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our tesponsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our repott.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that ate relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICATs Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basts for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Mattets

Key audit matters are those mattets that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the financial year ended 31" March, 2024. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We do not have any matters to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements section of our report. Accordingly, our audit included the petformance of
procedutes designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedu%,_ﬂggfgrq}cd to
address the matters, if any, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanyi vgg‘ andalbse Ind
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AS financial statements.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting trecords in accordance with the provisions of the Act;
safeguarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implumunmtiml and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etrot, and to issue an auditot’s repott
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guatantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggtegate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As patt of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in ordet to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we ate also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of agCalifitiing estimates
and related disclosures made by management. rr‘( /4 ¢
|
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we ate required to draw attention in out auditor’s repott to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repott.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes 1t probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualifative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our worlk; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those chatged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

[rom the matters communicated with those chatged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the curtent period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India after consultation with the National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA)
constituted under section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure I, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: e
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d.

.

. (a)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from out examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 Match
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepatate report in “Annexure II”; and

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the yeatr ended 31 March, 2024 has been paid /
provided by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and accotding to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does have pending litigations which would impact its financial position as per the

note given in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foresceable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were requited to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from botrowed funds or share premium ot any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities(“Intermediaties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secutity ot the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund shave been received by the Company from any
petsons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lendet
invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannet whatsoever by or 91;1rhgh‘2}§of the
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and apptopriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to out notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (2) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

3 As required by Reporting on Audit Trail by Independent Auditor (Rule 11(g) of Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014) we report that:-

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. [Additionally, the audit trail
has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.]

The company, in respect of financial years commencing on or after the 1st April, 2023, has used such
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(cdit log) facility and the same has been opetated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in
the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has been

preserved by the company as pet the statutory requirements for record retention.”

Date: 14.05.2024
Place: Gurugram

UDIN: 24085861BKATSA8730

For A.B. Sanwalka & Co
Chartered Accountants
Regn No. 007017N
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Annexure-I

Referred to in paragraph (1) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date on
the standalone financial statement of A2Z Infraservices Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31,
2024.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the notrmal course of audit, we report
“hat:

(i) (a) (A)The Company has maintained propet records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Propetty, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) As per the physical verification program, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In out
opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assetss

(©) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)are held in the name of the Company

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year.

(©) According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year ot are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any
benami propetty under the Benami T'ransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) As per the physical verification program, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals (except for stock lying with the third patties and in transit which
have been verified based on confirmations). In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
approptiate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies
of 10% or mote in the aggregate for each class of inventoties were noticed on such physical verification
of inventories when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs, 5 crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the quartetly returns/ statements (stock statements, book debt statements, credit  monitoring
arrangement reports, statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables, and other stipulated
financial information) filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material
discrepancies have been observed.

(i) (a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee ot security, and granted any

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured ot unsecured, to companies, firms; Limited Liability
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Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Otzder 1s
not applicable.

(b) In our opinion the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or secutity, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the yeatr.

(c) The Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(ii) (c), (d), (¢), (f) of the otder is not applicable

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s
products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) (a. The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
wete outstanding, at the year end, for a petiod of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues in respect of Goods &
Service tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there wetre no transactions relating to previously untrecorded income that wete
surendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to financial institutions/bank as detailed below:

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank ot

financial institution or any government authority. S R WAl
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(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the terms loans wete applied for the purpose for which the loans had
been taken.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long
term purposes.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures ot assoclate companies.

(x)(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Otrder are not
applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentutes (fully, partly or optionally convertible) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us, N0 matetial fraud by the Company ot
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(b)To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there wete no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year which remained unattended by the competent authorities.

(xify  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a

Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

(x1it) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on out examination of the recotds
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as requited by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the recotds
of the Company, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b)The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with its ditrectors. Accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicable to the Company. ;'M‘;ic_ PN
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(xvi) The Company is not requited to be registered under section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934 and hence reporting undet clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (¢) of the Order is not applicable. The Group
does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order

is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses duting the financial year covered by out audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned duting the year and we have taken into
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities (as per the payment schedule/ te-scheduled), other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit repott indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
howevert, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and/ or certificate
with respect to meeting financial obligations by the Company as and when they fall due. We further state
that our teporting 1s based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee NOr any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a petriod of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get dischatged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred amount in
respect of other than ongoing projects to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act before the expiry
of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by the
auditors of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to us by the
Management of the Company and based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we report that
the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO

repot.

For A.B. Sanwalka & Co
Chattered Accountants
_ Regn No. 007017N
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Date: 14.05.2024 &) Proptietor

M.No. 085861

Place: Gurugram

UDIN: 24085861BKATSA8730
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Annexure - 11 to the Auditors’ Report
(Refesred to in paragraph 1(6) undet ‘Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

to the members of the company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A2Z Infraservices Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the yeat ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

‘The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
[Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 1o company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely prepatation of reliable financial information, as required
under the (lmnp:mics; Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our rcspnnsibilit_v {s to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial teporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
I‘inancial Controls over [inancial Reporting (the “G uidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
[CAL and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain .asonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial teporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Standalone Ind A5 [inancial

T WAL

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation
Jf standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of
unauthotised acquisition, use, Of disposition of the company's assets that could have a matetial effect on the
standalone financial statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or impropet management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future petiods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

proccdures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In out opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial repotting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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A27 Infraservices Limited
Balance Shicetas at March 31, 2024,
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note
No.

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

ASSET S
Non-Current Asscets:

Moporny, Plant and Fguipment
ftangible Assers
Vinancual \ssets:

fovesunents

Orther Hinancial \ssets
Deterred tax assers (Ner)
Non-Current ‘Tax Assets (Net)
Other Non-Current Asscts

Current Asscts:
Inventories
l'inancial \sscts:
T'rade Receivables
Cash and Cash Viquivalents
Loans
Other Pinancial Asscts
Other Current Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity:
liquity Share Capital
Orther Yquity

Non-Current Liabilities:
I"inancial Liabilities:
Provisions

Current Liabilities:
l'inancial Liabilitics:
Borrowings
‘I'rade Payables
‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
‘T'otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Other I'inancial Liabilities
Provisions
Other Current Liabilitics

Summary of significant accounting policies

For A.B. Sanwalka & Co
Chartered Accountants ——
Regn No. 007017N
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10

11
12

13

14
15

16

17
18

19
16
20

1-2

827.90 893.42
1.60 1.91
1,303.74 1,231.37
359.96 455.72
1,265.97 1,046.33
2,996.60 2,986.48
118.65 118.65
6,874.42 6,733.89
2.36

3,272.25 4,298.19
18.03 51:.80
887.50 888.26
4,572.10 3,892.41
58.13 95.44
8,808.01 9,691.45
15,682.43 16,425.34
381.60 381.60
6,819.83 5,110.42
7,201.43 5,492.01
500.32 490.68
500.32 490.68
2,160.93 1,482.37
183.43 1.82
3,213.17 3,106.80
938.79 3,835.59
13.02 5.13
1,471.34 2,010.94
7,980.68 10,442.65
15,682.43 16,425.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Mittal
Director
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A27 Tnfraservices Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss fot the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue:
Revenue from operations 21 22,009.77 17,862.76
Orther income 22 97.33 90.90
Total revenue 22,107.10 17,953.67
Expenses:
Cost of matetials consumed and services 23 6,279.54 2,688.56
Employee benefits expense 24 12,524.44 11,564.37
Finance costs 25 313.48 477.82
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 26 158.83 159.53
Other expenses 27 986.24 488.33
Total expenses 20,262.52 15,378.61
Profit / (loss) befote exceptional item and tax 1,844.57 2,575.06
Exceptional (loss)/gain 28 (6,891.55)
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,844.57 (4,316.50)
Tax expense 29
Curtent Tax 452.70
Deferred Tax (243.48) (713.74)
209.22 (713.74)
Profit / (loss) for the year 1,635.36 (3,602.76)
Other comprehensive income:
A )Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
a) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 94.74 20.66
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (23.85) (5.20)
B i)Items that will be reclassified to profit ot loss -
70.89 15.46
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,706.25 (3,587.30)
Profit/ (Loss) earnings per equity share : 30
Basic (in INR) 42.86 (94.41)
Diluted (in INR) 42.86 (94.41)
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2

The accompaning notes are part of financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directots
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A2Z7 Infraservices Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

A Cash flow from opcerating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Inferest expense
\ssers written off

Interest income

Impact of recognising employee shace based options at fair value of the option

Iixceptional (gain)/loss
Provision for doubtful advances

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories

T'tade reccivables

Loans

Other financial assers

Other asscts

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
"I'rade payable

Other financial liability

Other current Hability

Provision

Current taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchasc of fixed asscts (including capital work in progress)
Purchase of intangible asscts
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries
llixed deposits placed (net)
Interest received
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)
Interest patd

Net cash used in from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- In current account

Summuary of significant accounting policies

"This is the cash flow statement as referred to in our report of even date.

For A.B. Sanwalka & Co =
Chartered Accountants b
Regn No. 07017N
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Proprictor
M.No. 085861

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14.05.2024

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,844.57 (4,316.49)
158.83 159.53
313.48 477.82
41.94
(97.33) (90.90)
3.17 (27.55)
6,891.55
325.12 13.00
2,547.84 3,148.91
2.36 (0.30)
700.82 1,578.34
0.76 23.15
(698.79) (567.82)
37.32 (42.16)
287.98 (191.65)
(2,915.63) 61.99
(539.60) (1,389.19)
112.27 26.66
(464.67) 2,647.94
(462.83) (422.62)
(927.50) 2,225.32
(92.23) (39.47)
©.77) (2.50)
(0.00) (2.00)
106.03 (204.12)
33.80 1337
46.82 (234.72)
: (266.67)
678.55 (1,347.13)
(294.65) (458.46)
383.91 (2,072.26)
(496.76) (81.66)
514.80 596.46
18.03 514.80

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

0.40 0.02
17.63 514.77
18.03 514.80

For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors

Ok

Amit Mictal
Dircctor '
(IDIN: 00058944 . ©
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A2Z Iofraservices Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Notes

A Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of INR 10 each
Balance as at April 1, 2023 14
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Notes

B Other Equity
As at April 1, 2023 15
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Remeasurements benefits on defined benefit obligations
Add /|Less|: Addition during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.
For A.B, Sanwalka & Co

Chartered Accountants
Regn No. 007017N y/

WAL
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AB. Sanwalka
Proprictor
M.No. 085861

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14.05.2024

Number of shares Amount
38,15,978 381.60
38,15,978 381.60
Securities Employee . Reserves and
. Stock Capital Geeneral ,
Premium . Surplus- Retained Total
option  rescrves Reserves "
Account earnings
reserve
2,456.61 38.65  995.41 22.11 1,597.63 5,110.42
1,635.36 1,635.36
70.49 70.89
317 - 3.17
2.456.61 41,82 995.41 22.11 3,303.88 6,819.83
For and on behalf of the board ofrs_lirucmrs
Amit Mittal Dipali Mittal

Whole time Director
(DIN: 00872628)

Director
(IDIN: 00058944)




A2Z7 Infraservices Limited
Significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwisce stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 1: Nature of operations

\27 Infraservices Limited (the Company’) is the subsidian of \27 Infra Fngincering Limited. 1t was incorporated ar National Capital Terdeory of Delhi & Hasvana on
\pril 15, 2008, .

in facilin management services, the company provides back end management services for efficient functioning of Shopping Malls, \irports, Multipleses, Corporate &
Business Psrablisments like Operations and Maintenance (O&M) services such as Flectromechanical Senvices, Linvironmental Serviees, Mechanized ousckeeping Serviee,

Security Serviees, ere, upkeep of Railway ‘T'rains & Stations and other Comprehensive Services for lacilities/ Ndministiation Management

2. Significant Accounting Policics
2.1 Basis of Accounting:

I'he financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notificd under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relavent provisions of the Aer

2.2 Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company is expected to be catitled to in exchange for those goads or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measurced at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. "T'his vartable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent thar it is
highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved

2.2.1 Interest Income:

For all debt instrauments measured cither at amortised cost ot at fair value through other comprehensive income |OCI], interest income is recorded using the cffective
interest rate |BIR] TR s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument ot a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial assct or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the cffective interest rate, the
Company cstimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrament |for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options| but does not consider the expected credit losses.

2.3 Other Income:
Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or cealisation exists.

2.4 Borrowing Costs

Botrowings arc initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurted. Borrowing are subscquently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (nct of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 1oss over the period of the botrowings using the cffective
interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or prodiction of a qualifying asscts arc capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for it's intended usce ot sale, Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended usc ot sale.

Other botrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.5 Other Intangible Assets
Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible asscts acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date
of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carricd at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated tmpairment losses.
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A27 Infraservices Limited
Significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

M finite-lived intangible assers, including capiralised internally developed sofiware, are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs e amortised on a
steaight-tine basis over their estimated nseful lives: Residual values and useful Tives are reviewed at cach reporting dare In addition, they are subject 1o tmpairment festng s
dexeribed in Nore 2.7 The foliowing aseful lives are applicd:
* Software: 3-5 vears
Amortisation has been included within depreciation, amortisacion and impairment of nonfinancial asses
Subsequent expendirures on the maintenance of computer soffware is expensed as weurred.

When an intangible asset s disposed of], the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrving amount of the asser, and is

recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (comprising fittings and furnicure) are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost, including any costs dirceely ateributable

to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to e eapable of operating in the manner infended by the Company’s management

Property, plant and cquipment are subsequently measured ar cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis fo write down the cost less estimated tesidual value of Property, plant and equipment. “The following uscful lives are
applicd:

* Buildings : 3-60 ycars

e Plant and liguipment : 8-15 years

e lf'urniture and lixtores : 8-10 vears

* Vchicles : 6-10 years

* Office liquipment : 5 years

= Computers : 3-6 ycars

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually.

Gains or losses atsing on the disposal of Property, plant and cquipment are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and arce recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses

2.7 Leased Assets

2.7.1 Finance leases

Management applics judgment in considering the substance of a lcase agreement and whether it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased asset. Key factors considered include the length of the leasce term in relation to the cconomic life of the asset, the present value of the minimum lease payments in
relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the Company obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

lfor leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are first allocated to cach component based on the relative fair values of the respective lease interests. 1lach
component is then evaluated separatcly for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration the fact that land normaily has an indefinite cconomic life

Sce Note 2.8 for the depreciation methods and uscful lives for assets held under finance leases.

T'he interest element of lease payments is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period of the lease
2.7.2 Operating leases ’

Albother leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessee, payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, arce expensed as incurred.

2.8 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For impairment assessment purposces, asscts arce grouped at the lowest levels for which there ate largely independent cash inflows (cash-gencrating units), As a result, some
assees are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-gencrating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-gencrating units that are expected to
benefit from synergies of a related business combination and represent the lowest Ievel within the Company at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-gencerating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Company’s management as equivalent to its operating segments) arc tested for impaitment
at least annually. All other individual asscs or cash-gencrating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s (or cash-gencerating unit’s) carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. o determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from cach cash-gencrating unit and
determines a suitable discount rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are dircetly linked to the
Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as nceessary to exclude the cffects of futute reorganisations and asset enhancements, Discount factors are determined
individually for cach cash-generating unit and reflect currene market assessments of the time value of money and assct-specific risk factors
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A27 Infraservices Limited

Significant accounting policies for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Impairment losses for cash-pencrating units reduce fise the carmving amount of any goodwill allocated (o tha casii-generating umt. \ny rematnieg

Impairment foss i

chaseed pro vata to the atherassets in the eash-gencrting unit Wetle the exception of goodwill, all assets are sulbsc quently reassessed for indications that an iinpaivmes: loss

previously recognised may no fanger exist. An impairment foss is reversed i the asset’s o cash-geacrating unit’s recoverable amonnt esceeds its crsying amount

2.9 Financial Instruments

\ financial instrument is any conrract that gives rise fo a financial asset of one entiry and a fnancial Hability or cquity instrument of another entity

2.9.1 Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments:
M financial assets are reeognised itially at fair value plus, o the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profie or Toss, transaction costs that are
attributable ro the acquisition of the financial asscr. Uhe company currently have sceurity deposits, tnvestment in preference shates of subsidian companices, made

receivables, loans cte.

Financial assees are derecognised when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and subsequently all the risks and

rewards are tranferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.9.2 Classification and Subscquent measurement of financial assets:

inancial assees are classified as subsequently measured ac amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT or fair value through profic or loss
(N°1PL)

\ financial asset is measured atamortised cost if it mecets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at VTP, :

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to colleet contractual cash flows; and

D) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

\ financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met and it is not designated as ae FN7LPL:

a) the financial assct is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asscts and

b) the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are classified as measured ac FVTPL. The Bank may designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requitements to be measured at amortised
cost or at ['VOCE as at FVIPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. The Bank has not applied fair value
designation option for any financial assets.

2.9.3 Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss [1XC1L] model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

. linancial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. sceurity deposits

b. I'inancial asscts that arc available for sale.

c. 'T'tade receivables or any contractual right to reecive cash or another financial assct

The Company follows ‘simplifiecd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Point ¢ provided above.

‘The application of simplificd approach require the company to recognise the impairment loss allowance based on lifetime HCLs at cach reporting date, vight from its initial
recognition. lor recognition of impairment loss on other financial asscts and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month 13CLL is used to provide for impairment loss. | Towever, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime 1CIL is used. Tf, in a subscquent petiod, credit quality of the instrument imptoves such that thete is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the Lifetime 15C)L are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument,

‘The 12-month 11CLL is a portion of the lifetime BCL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are duc to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash fAows that the entity expects to
receive [ie, all cash shortfalls], discounted at the original IR, BECL impairment loss allowance [ot reversal] recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
n the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head “other expenses’. The balance sheet presentation for various financial insttuments is described below :

Ifinancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 11C . is presented as an allowance reducing the net carrying amount

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
lor assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit tisk characteristics.

2.9.4 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

The measurement of financial labilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

I'inancial liabilities at fair valuc through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial labilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or Toss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instraments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effecrive hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading ace recognised in the profir or loss. Hinancial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designared as such at the initial date of recagnition, and only if the criterin in Tnd AS 109 are satisficd for Rabilities designated as I'VIPL, fair value gains/ losses attrbutable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCT These gains/ Toss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liability arc recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has nor
destgnated any financial liability as ar fair value through Statement of Profit and Toss
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A2Z Infraservices Limited
Signiticant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless othenwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Loans and borrowings:

Mier initial recognition, mterest-bearing loans and borrowings we subsequently measwied at amontised cost using the FIR method. Gains and losses are recogns

profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the HIR amortisatton proc
Vmortised cost i caleuluted by raking into account any discount or preminm on acqguisition and fees o costs that are an integral part of the FTR. The IR amortisation is

included as (inance costs in the Statement of Profitand {.oss

2.9.5 Reclassification of financial instraments:

I'he Company determines classitication of financiul assees and Kabilitics on initial recognition. \frer initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are cquiny instruments and financial abiliries, For financial assees which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assers. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines ehange in the business model as a
result of external or infernal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. \ change in the business model oceurs
when the Company either beging or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifics financial asscts, it applics the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately nexe reporting period following the change in business model. "T'he
Company does not yeseate any previously recognised gains, losses [including impairment gains or losses| ot interest. The Company did not reclassify any financial asscts in

the current period.

2.9.6 Offsctting of financial instruments:
linancial asscts and financial tabilitics are offser and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there s acurrently enforceable legal right to offsce the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to seetle on a net basts, to realise the assets and scttle the labilitics simultancously
2.10 Inventories

Inventotics are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

a. Raw Marcrials, Packing Material and Stores & Spare Parts: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and conditton. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basts.

b. Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating
capacity, bur excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basis.

c. Stock-in-Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first-in
first-out basts.

Net realisable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessaty to make the

sale.

2.11 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss compriscs the sum of deferred tax and curtent tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or dircctly in cquity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the teportting petiod. Deferred income taxes ate
calculated using the liability method.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the undetlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the
use of any unusced tax loss ot credit.

2.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the date of
acquisition that arc readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.13 Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued
Share prcmi:lm includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from shate premium, net
of any relared income rax benefits.
Other components of cquity include the following:

® Remeasurement of net defined benefie liability - Comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(sce Note 2.13)

® Retained carnings includes all current and prior period retained profits and share-based emplovee remuncration (see Note 18). All transactions with owners of the
parent are recorded separately within cquity. Dividend distributions payable to equity sharcholders are included in other liabilitics when the dividends have been approved

in a general mecting prior to the reporting date.
’




A27Z Infraservices Limited
Significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR TLacs)

2.14 Post-cmployment benefits and short-term employee benefits
Post-employment bencefit plans
Ihe Company provides post-employment benefits through vardous defined contibution and defined benefit plans
Defined Contribution Plans :
Retirement benefits in the form of providenr fund and conployee stare insutance are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Stuement of
Profitund Loss of the vear when the contributions o the respective funds are due
Defined Benefit Plans :
Graruity liability is defined benehit obligadon and is provided for on the basis of an acruarial valuation on projected unit eredit method made at the end of cach financial

year. Hyvery emplovee who has completed five yeats or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach complered vear of service

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefir liabilie
and the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the Balanee Sheet with a corresponding debit or eredit to Retained Pamings chrough OCH in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified 1o profic or Joss in subscquent periods.

Leave Liability:

The employees of the Company are entitled o leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward
bevond twelve months, as long, term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such Tong term compensated abscnces are provided for based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Neruarial gains/Tosses should be recognized in Statement of Profirand Loss.

Short-term employec benefits
Short-rerm employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current labilities included in pension and other employee obligations, measured at the undiscounted

amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement

2.15 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions for product warrantics, legal disputes, oncrous contracts or other claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal ot constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of cconomic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to scttle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available ar the reporting date, including
the risks and uncertaintics associated with the present obligation. Where there are 4 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
sertlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions ate discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is matcrial

Any reimbursement that the Company is virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. [Towever, this assct
may not exceed the amount of the telated provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations arce disclosed as contingent labilitics unless
the outflow of resources is remote.

[f the cffect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a cutrent pre-tax rate which reflects the current market assessment of time value of
money. Government bond rate can be used as discount rate, as it is a riskfree pre-tax rate reflecting the ime value of money. Hor this purposc, the discount rate should also
be reassessed at the end of cach reporting period, including the interim reporting date, if any

2.16 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Recognition of service and construction contract revenues :
Determining when to recognise revenues from after-sales scrvices requires an understanding of both the nature and timing of the services provided and the costomers’
pattern of consumption of those services, based on historical experience and knowledge of the market.

Recognition of deferred tax assets :

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an ass

ssment ot the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilised. Tn addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic
limits ot uncertaintics in various tax jutisdictions (sce Note 2.11).

2.17 Estimation Uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions thar have the mosr significant cffect on recognition and measurement of asscts, liabilities, income and expenses s
provided below. Actual results may be substantially different

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of cach assct or cash generating units based on expected future cash Aows and uses an interest

ate to discount them. Hstimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the uscful lives of depreciable assees at cach reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Unecrtaintics in these
estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the atiliey of certain software and FI equipment,
Inventories

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most eliable evidence available ar cach reporting date. The future realisation of
these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-driven ehanges that may reduce future sclling prices
Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management’s estimate of the DBO) 1s based on a aumber of critical underlying assumptions such as srandard rates of inflation, mortality, discount ratc and anticipation

of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses

-\
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A2Z Infraservices Limited
Significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Fair value measurement

Manmagement uses valuation technigues to determine the faiv value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assers has

mvolves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument Management basces its axsumptions on observable data
as faras possible but this is not always available Tn that case management uses the best mformation available. stimared fair values muy vary from the actual prices thie

wotifd be achieved inanarm’s tengeh transaction ar dhe reporting dare .

2.18 Leascs

s with

The Company has adopred Ind AS 116-1.eases offective Tse April, 2019, using the modificd retrospectiy e method. The Company has applied the standard to ies leas
the cumularive impact recognised on the date of initial application (st April, 2019). \ccordingly, previous period information has not heen restated. The Company assesses

whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract.
The Company as lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an tdentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. T'o assess
whether a contiact conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 0
(i) the Company has substantially all of the cconomic benefies from use of the asser through the period of the lease and
@)  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commeneement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is

a lessee, exeept for leases with a term of twelve months ot less (shott term leases) and leases of low value assets. 1ot these short term and leases of low value assets, the

Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expensce over the term of the lease.

The fight-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comptises the initial amount of the Iease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease They ate subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-usc asscts are depreciated
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and uscful life of the underlying assct.

‘The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest tate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease lability is subscquently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease Tiability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of cereain events such as a change in the
lease term or a change in an index ot rate used to determine Iease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased asscts.

The Company as lessor
i) Operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which cconomic benefits from the leased assct is diminished. Tnital direct costs incutred in negotiating and atranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

ii) Finance lease
When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a reccivable. “The difference between the gross

receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as uncarned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment
method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return,
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A2Z Infraservices Limited

Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 4 : Other Intangible Assets

Gross Carrying Amount:

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions
Disposals
Other adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions
Disposals
Other adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Amortisation and Impairment:

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation for the year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Amortisation for the year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Net Cartying Amount:
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Balance as at March 31,2023

Computer Software

Intangibles assets

under development Teal

254.63 41.94 296.57
2.50 2.50
(41.94) (41.94)

257.13 - 257.13
0.78 0.78
257.91 257.91
254.16 - 254.16
1.06 1.06
255.22 . 255.22
1.09 1.09
256.31 - 256.31
1.60 " 1.60
1.91 " 1.91




A2Z Infraservices Limited

Notes o the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note § : Investments:

Long Term Investments:
Carrying amount at amortised cost:

Tnsestments in Eguiny Tnsuuments of subsidiarices

Investments in Prelerence Shares

Totul

Investment in Equity Instruments:

Subsidiary Companies |Unquoted]:

24,500 (Previous Year - 24,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up in lcogreen

linvirotech Soutions Limited

10,000 (Previous Year - Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up in Vsapients

“I'echno Services Prvate Limited

10,000 (Previous Year - Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up in Vswach
Linvirconment (Algarh) Private Vimited

35,000 (Previous Year - 35,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up in A27, Waste

Management (Ludhiana) Limited

40,000 (Previous Year - 40,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in A2/ Wasie

Management (Aligarh) Limited

Investment in Preference Shares- Equity portion

15.21,713 (Previous Year - 15,21,713) 0.001% Non Participative Cumulative  Preference

Shares of A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

T100,000 (Previous Year - 11,00,000) 0.001% non participative cumulative preference

shares of Rs 10,00 Lach, Fully paid up in licogreen Envirotech Soutions Limited

95,00,00 (Previous Year - 95,00,00) 0.001% Non Participative Cumulative  Preference

Shares of A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

64,50,000 (Previous Year - 64,50,000) 0.001% Non Participative Cumnulative Preference

Shares of A27, Waste Management (Aligach) Limited

Investment in Preference Shares- Debt portion

1521,713 (Previous Year - 15,21,713) 0.001% Non Participative Cumulative Preference

Shares of A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

11,00,000° (Previous Yeae - 11,00,000) 0.001% non participative cumulative preference

shares of Rs 10.00 Lach, fully paid up in Lcogreen Envirotech Soutions Limited

95,00,000 (Previous Year - 95,00,000) 0.001"% Non Participative Cumulative Preference

Shares of A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

64,50,000 (Previous Year - 64,50,000) 0.001% Non Participative Cumulative Preference

Shares of A2/, Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Impairement in value of Investments

Note 6 : Other Financial Assets

|Unsceured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Sceurity Deposits
Considered Good
Considered doubtful
léarnest money deposit with customers
Considered good
Cosidered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtlul carnest money deposit
arnest money deposit with customers
Advance recoverable n cash
Considered gond
Constdered doubiiul
Less: Provision (or doubtful deposits
Advance recoverable i cash
Contract revenue m excess of billings ™
Interest acerued on fixed deposits
Retention Money
Bank deposits with more than 12 months matariey|*|
Total .
[*] Held as margin money against bank guaraniees and letier of
" Contract asset as per INDAS 115

s
Geyl

As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

1195 1195
1,291.79 1,219.42
1,303.74 1,231.37
245 245
100 1.0
1.0} 1.00
3.50 350
4.00 4.00
125.77 125.77
103.64 103.64
55.66 55.66
349.91 34991
63.46 56.45
13,51 12.19
68.22 60.68
511.62 455.12
1,303.74 1,231.37
1,303.74 1,231.37
As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Current Non - Current Current Non-Current
904.34 24.02 360.09 13.76
406.40 53.25
1,310.74 24.02 413.35 13.76
(9.89 53.42
69.89 53.42
221379 2,240.61
7.51 16.34
970.17 1.168.68
- 335,94 441.97
)1 TN z 4,572.10 359.96. 3,802.41 465.72
) At ¥

-~ P
il as debt 3y




A2Z Infrascrvices Limited

Noutes to the financiuls statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 7 : Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax liabitities

As at

March 31, 2024

Charge to Profit and
Loss account

March 31, 2023

Depreciation 2809 1118 39,27
28.09 11.18 39.27
Deferred tax assets
Proviston Tor doubtful debis 137 69 (81.83) 35.85
Provision for doubtful advances 859.79 (1.03) 839.76
Gratiy and 438 296.58 (126.59) 169.99
INDAS 116
1,294.06 (208.45) 1,085.61
Total 1,265.97 (219.04) 1,046.33
Note 8 : Non Current Tax Assets (Net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance pavment of 'I'ax {Net of provision| 2006600 2.986.48
Total 2,996.60 2,986.48
Note 9 : Other Assets As at
|Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated] March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Current Non - Current Current Non-Current
Capital Advance - 1 18.65 - 118.65
Prepaid expenses 58.13 - 66.13
Balances with government authoritics - Service tax recoverable =
Balances with government authoritics - GST recoverable
Balances with government authorities - WCT/VA'L recoverable 29.31
Advance to staff - - -
Total 58.13 118.65 95.44 118.65
Note 10 : Inventories As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Consumables - 2.36
Total - 2.36
Note 11 : Trade Receivables As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsccured, considered good)
Other than related parties
Considered good 2,999.26 4,027.70
Considered doubtful 547.03 221.90
3,546.29 4,249.60
Related parties
Considered good 272.99 270.49
Considered doubtful
272,99 270.49
Iess: Allowances for credit losses (547.03) (221.90)
Total 3.272.25 4,298.19
The movements in the allowance for credit losses is presented below:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 221.90 334.27
]mpnirmunt loss/ ceversed 32513 (11237
Closing Balance 547.03 221.90

All trade receivables are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value. The carrving amount of the receivable is considered a
reasonable approximation of fair value which is measured at amortised cost. The effect of any diffecence between the effective interest rate applied and the estimared current market race is
not significant. All of the Company’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for credit loss.
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A27Z Infrascrvices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for {ollowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars —n > ths
s 6 months -1 ycar 1-2 years 2-3 vears ol Total
months : yewrs
(L adisputed Trade receivables - considered good 206411 53.602 23,32 4321 682.005 2.866.51
(i Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk 547.03 547.03
(i) Undispured Trade Reccivables — credit
impaired (547.03) (547.03)
(iv) Disputed "T'rade Receivables — considered
.L!“ULl
405.74 405.74
(v) Disputed “I'rade Reccivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ~ o
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - . - -
Total 2,064.11 53.62 23.52 43.21 1,087.79 3,272.24
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 1-2 2-3 More than 3
6 months -1 year Total
months years years years
(nHUndisputed ‘I'rade receivables — considered good 2,596.75 3.83 20,01 97.25 1,116.98 3,834.82
(i) Undisputed “I'tade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk 221.90 221.90
(i) Undisputed ‘T'rade Receivables — credir
impaired - - (221.90) (221.90)
(iv) Disputed Trade Recevables — considered
zood . 463.37 463.37
(v) Disputed T'rade Reccivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk . B 1 > .
(vi) Disputed T'rade Receivables — credit impaired - . ; = =
Total 2,596.75 3.83 20.01 97.25 1,580.35 4,298.19
Note 12 : Cash and Cash Equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with Banks in Current Account 17.63 514.77
Cash on Iland 0.40 0.02
Total 18.03 514.80
Note 13 : Loans As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Current
(Unsccured, considered good unless othenwise stated)
Advances and loans to group companics [*| 3.914.56 3,914.56
Loan to employees 0.10 0.87
Interest accrued and due from Group Company 388.77 388,77
4,303.43 4,304.19
Less: Provision for doubtful loans 341593 3,415.93
Total 887.50 888.26
[*] Details of Loans and Advances to related parties are as under:
(a) A27, Green Waste Management Limited 3,415.93 3,415.93
A27 Maintenance & lingincering Services Limited & Satya . .
®) Builders (AOP) 43,19 iy
(<) Rishikesh Waste Mangement )imited 44.00 44.00
() A27. Waste Management(l.udhiana) Timited .44 9.43
Provisions for doubtful loans
A27. Green Waste Management Limited (3,415.93) (3,415.93)
498.63 498.62
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A2Z Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 15 : Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: T'ransfer from statement of profir and loss
Add: Remeasurements benefits on defined benefit obligations
Closing balance

Employee stock option reserve
Opening balance

Add: limployce stock option expense
Closing balance

General Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss
Closing balance

Capital Reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss
Closing balance

Securities premium account

Opening balance

Add: "I'ransfer from statement of profit and loss
Less: Premiurn Utilised

Closing balance

Total other equity

1,597.63 5,184.93
1,635.36 (3,602.76)
70.89 15.46
3,303.88 1,597.63
38.65 66.20
3.17 (27.55)
41,82 38.65
22.11 2.1
22.11 22.11
995.41 995.41
995.41 995.41
2,456.61 2,456.61
2,456.61 2,456.61
6,819.83 5,110.42




A2Z Infraservices Limited
Notee to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 16 : Provisions As at

As at

As at

As at

March i1, 2024

Murch 31, 2024

Murch 31, 2023

Murely 31, 2023

Current

Non-Cuorrent

Current

NonsCurrent

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for gratuity 13.02 500.32 5013 490.68
Total 13.02 500,32 5.13 490.68
Note 17 : Current Borrowings As at As at

Muarch 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Cash credit Facilities (Sccured)* 273.45 1,236.90
Loan from Group Company (Unsecured) 95.48 95.48
Loan from others 500.00
Loan from directors 1,292.00 150.00
Total 2,160.93 1,482.37

"The careying amount of working capital teem loan, Cash credit facilities and Buyers credit facilities are considered to be same as their fair value due to their short term nature.

* Cash credit facility from banks amounting to INR 273.45 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,236.90 Iacs), in casc of A2/, Infraservices Limited, are sccured by first paci passu charge on the
current asscts of holding company including book debts and other receivable and fixed assets of the company and also by Corporate Guarantee of the |lolding Company and personal

guarantee of Mr. Amit Mittal (Managing Director) and Ms. Dipali Mittal (Director) of the Company.




A27 Infraservices Limited
Notes 1o the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 18: Trade Payables As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other than aceeptances: otal outstindimg dues of mscro ind small enterprises | 18343 1.82
Other than aceeptances: oial oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Sundry creditors (Creditors Pspenses pavable and Salarics pavable) 3.213.17 5,106,841
Tatal 3,396.60 3,108.62
'] Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as par MSMED et 2006 the principal amount and the interest duce
thereon remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end ol each aceounnng vem
- principal amount 183.43 |82
- tnterest amount
'he amount of interest pad by the buver in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Aet, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 1o the supplier bevond the appointed day
during cach accounting v
I'he amount ol interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but withour adding (he interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
I'he amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
I'he amount of further interest remaming due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid ro the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowanee as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Fnterprise Development Act, 2006
Al the teade payables are short ierm. The carrying value of trade pavables are considered o be the reasonable approximation of fair value.
Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2024
. Outstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars = -
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years  |Total
(i) MSMIE 183.43 - - 183.43
(i) Others 148.07 2,078.01 725.72 261.37 3,213.17
(iif) Disputed dues - MSMIY . _ -
(iv} Disputed ducs - Others = : = =
Total 148.07 2,261.44 725.72 261.37 3,396.60
Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2023
i O ding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars -
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
i MSMIL - 0.00 1.82 - - 1.82
(i1} Others 491.52 1,966.74 162,53 486.01 3,106.80
(i1} Disputed dues — MSMIY : =
(iv} Disputed ducs - Others - - - - Z -
Total 491.52 1,966.74 164.35 - 486.01 3.108.62
Note 19 : Other Financial Liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Current
Payable to group company 468.36 3,356.67
Security Deposit 391.03 418,35
Interest accured for related parties 79.40 61,57
Total 938.79 3,835.59
Note 20 : Other Liabilities As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Current Non - Current Current Non-Current
Statutory ducs payable 715.08 503.41
Other payables 756.26 |,517.53
Total 1,471.34 - 2,010.94 -




A27 Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 14: Share capital

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Liquity shares of Rs 0 cach 2,68,55,000 2,685.50 2,68,55.000 2,685.50)
6% non cumularive redeemable preference share of Rs 100/ 500 0.50 500 0.30
cach”
6% non cumulative redecmable preference share of Rs 10/- 2,50,000 25.00 2.50,000 25.00
each”

2,71,05,500 2,711.00 2,71,05,500 2,711.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
LEquity shares of Rs 10 cach fully paid up 38,15,978 381.60 38,15,978 381.60

38,15,978 381.60 38,15,978 381.60

Preference shares has been accounted on amortised cost

Note 14.1: Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Opening balance 38,15,978 381.60 38,15,978 381.60
Add: Fresh issue - -
Closing balance 38,15,978 381.60 38,15,978 381.60

Note 14.2: Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share
and also are entitled to receive dividend after preference shares. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. In the events of
liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note 14.3: Detail of shares held by A2Z Infra Engineering Limited, the holding company.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Opening balance 35,80,410 358.04 35,80,410 358.04
Add: Fresh issue . » =
Closing balance 35,80,410 358.04 35,80,410.00 358.04

Note 14.4: Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shates in the Company

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held held
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
A2Z Infra Engineering Limited 35,80,410 93.83% 35,80,410 93.83%
35,80,410 93.83% 35,80,410 93.83%
Note 14.5: Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held held
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
A2Z Infra Engineering Limited 35,80,410 93.83% 35,80,410 93.83%
35,80,410 93.83% 35,80,410 93.83%
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A2Z Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 21 : Revenue from Operations For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Services
Revenue from operation and maintenance services 2007 17,862.76
Total 22,009.77 17,862.76

¥Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognition at apoint of time

Revenue recognition over period of time 2200477 17,862.76

The amounts reeeivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average is less than 90 days

There is no signilicant (inancing component in any transaction with the customers. ‘The Company provides agreed upon performance warranty for sclected range of
B ) ¢ 3 &

products. The amount of liability towards such warranty is immaierial

Note 22 : Other Income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income:
on [ixed deposits 24.91 26.57
on prelerence shares (notional portion) 72,36 64.22
on others 0.06 0.11
Total 97.33 90.90
Note 23 : Cost of Materials Consumed and Services For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 2.36 2.06
Material consumed 1,185.71 871.02
Sub contractor / crection expenses 4,581.94 1,522.91
Other direet cost 509.53 294.93
Closing stock - (2.36)
Total 6,279.54 2,688.56
Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expense For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salarics and bonus including dircctors' remuncration 11,218.07 10,279.08
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 1,078.09 1,063.53
Pensions — defined benefit plans 213.96 218.03
Share-based payments 317 (27.55)
Staff welfare expenses 11.15 31.27
Total 12,524.44 11,564.37

[*I The Company's contribution towards the defined contribution plan
The Company makes Provident Iund contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for qualifying employees, as specified under the law. The
contributions are paid to the Provident [Fund ‘I'rust set up by the Company or to the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner under the Pension
Scheme: The Company is generally liable for annual contribution and any shortfall in the trust fund asscts based on the government specified minimum rate of
return and recognises such contribution and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year it is incurred.

Gratuity

The Company provides tor the gratutiy for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972 Timployces who are in continuous service of five years
arc cligible to gratuity. "Fhe amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportonatcly
for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service, the gratity plan is funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in
India. "T'he Company doces not fully fund the Hability and maintains the target level of funding to be maintained over the period of time based on estimates of
expected gratuity payments

Defined Contribution Plan

T'he Company has also certain defined contribution plans. The contributions are made 1o providend fund in India for employees at the rate of 12°0 of the basis
salary as per regulations. The contribution are made to registered providend fund administered by the govenment, The obligation of the Company is limited to
the amount contrbuted and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation the expense recognised during the period towards the defined
contribution plan is INR 935 21 lacs (Previous year : INR 533.08 lacs)




A27Z Infrascrvices Limited
Notcs to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Asscets and Liahility (Balance Sheet Position)

Particulars As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present Value of Obligation 52475 30675
Fair Value of Plan \ssets 1141 19
Surplus / (Deficit) (513.34) (495.81)
Iiffects of Asset Caling, il any
Net Assct / (Liability) (513.34) (495.81)

Expcnscs Recognized during the period

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
In Income Statement 213.96 21803
In Other Comprehensive Income (94.74) (20,66)
Total Expenses Recognized during the period 119.22 197.37

Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Particulars For the year ending
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 506.75 500,32
Current Serviee Cost 177.69 182.79
Interest Fxpense or Cost 3707 36.00
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

- changce in financial assumptions 10.45 .11

- experience variance (i.e. Actual expericncevs assumplions) (105.52) (13.88)
Benefits Paid (101.69) (191.37)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 524.75 | 506.75

Bifurcation of Net Liability

Particulars As on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Liability (Short term) 13.02 5.13
Non-Current Liability (I.ong term) 500.32 490.68
Net Liability 513.34 495.81

Plan assets
‘The reconciliation of the balance of the asscts held for the Group®s defined benetit plan is presented below:

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars For the year ending

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning 10.94 10,52
Investment Income 0.80 0.76
Return on plan asscts , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (0.34) (0.33)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end 11.40 10.94

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Particulars For the year ending

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 177.69 18279
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Assct) 36.27 35.24
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement 213.96 218.03

“T'he current service cost and the past service cost are included in employee benefits expense. ‘T'he net interest expense is included in finance costs.

Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars For the year ending
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in financial assumptions 10.45 (7.11)
- experienee variance (e, Actual experience vs assumptions) (1015.52) (13.88)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense .33 0.33

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (94.74) (20.66)




A2Z Infrascrvices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Financial Assumptions

e principal finaneal assumptions used in the vaduation are shown in the able below:

Particulars As on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate (por annumy) 715"y 7.2,
Salary growth rate (per annumy 501" 3000
Demographic Assumptions
Particulars As on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mortality Rate ("o of LALN 06-08) [[EARE TR0,
Normal relirement age 58 Yenrs S8 Yours
Withdrawal rates, based on scrvice vears: (per annumy
4 and below vears 20001 200000
Above 4 vears 200" 2000w

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarics. Discount lactors are determined close to each vear-end by reference
to marker yiclds of high quality: corporate bonds that are denominated in the currencey in which the benefits will be paid and that have wrms o maturic
approximating (o the teems ol the relared pension obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical experiencee

Sensitivity Analysis
Signilicant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined bencefit obligation are discountrate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other

assumptions constant. T'he results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation (Basc) 524.75 506.75

R March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particlulars

Decrease Increase Decerease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1) 602.29 460,45 584.36 442.86
Mo change compared to base due o sensitiviry) 14.80"« -12.30" 15.30% -12,60"«
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 19%) 458.68 603.22 441.02 585.41
(" v change compared to base due to sensitivity -12.60"u 15.00" -13.00% 15.50"
Attrition Rate (- / + 50" ) 576.64 47877 494,81 516.19
(" change compared to base duc to sensitiviey) 9.90%u -8.80% -2.40% 1.90"
Mortality Rate (- / + 10" a) 524.25 525.25 506.29 507.21
("o change compared to base duc to sensitivity) -0.01% 0 0.01%u -0.10% Q.10%

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may ot be representative of the actual change in the defined bencfit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. IFor change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above, where assumptions for prior period, if

applicable, arc given.

Maturity Analysis
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. Ifor change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above, where assumptions for prior period, if

applicablc, are given.

1 year 2to5years 6tol0years More than 10 years Total

31-Mar-24

Defined Benefit Obligation (pension and gratuity) 13.02 89.38 201.83 1.374.82 1,679.06
Post - emplovment medical bencefirs -
Total 13.02 89.38 201.83 1,374.82 1,679.06
31-Mar-23

Defined Benelit Obligation (pension and gratuity) 16.07 80.65 183.83 1.471,09 1,751.64
Past - employment medical benefits -
Total 16.07 80.65 183.83 1,471.09 1,751.64

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Note 25 ;: Finance Cost

Interest expense |'] 24910 409.09
Other Borrowing Costs

Bank commission & charges 64,38 08.73
Total 313.48 477.82

1¥] The break up of interest expense into major heads is given below:
14691 154.99
102,19 54,11

On other bank loans
On others

Total 2490004 5 409.09




A2Z Infraservices Limited
Notes to the finuncials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, alt amounts arc in INR Lacs)

Note 26 : Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment expenses

Deprecinion ol property. plant and cquipment
Right 1o usc assct
Amaortisation of intingible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation expense
Note 27 : Other Expensces

Vet rietty
Rent
Interest and Penaliy
Rates and “I'axes
Insurance
Traveling & Conveyance
Communicalion expenses
Panting and stationery
G Late Vee
Legal and Professional
Dircctor sitting fees
Payment to auditors

- Statutory audit fee

- 'ax audit fee
Assets written off
Provision for doubtful debis
Donation (inludes TNR 13.00 Jacs towards CSR in previous year)
Miscellancous expensces
Total

Note 28 : Exceptional Items
loans reccivbales written off
Provision on Loans

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

15774 157.67
- (860
109 i 6

158.83 159.53

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

2031 246
12276 9411
191 14.29
5.22
48N 7.75
219.51 137.84
16.32 12,72
1115 16.10
109 92.09
2413 4351
1.90 190
260 2,60
(1.38 (.38
41.94
325,12

13.94 13.00
171.01 90.05
986.24 488.33
(3,475.73)

(341542

(6,891.55)

During the previous year, the company has assessed credit losses on toans granted to one of the associate of its IHolding company and interest reccivable on such
loans. [ixceptional item includes such credit loss for provision for doubful loan amounting to Rs. 3415.82 Lakhs and amount written off for interest reccivable on

such loans amounting Rs. 3475.73 Lakhs agrregating to 6,891.55 Lakhs.

Note 29 : Tax Expense

Current T'ax lixpense
Defereed Tax Lixpense
Tax Expense

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

For the year ended
March 312024

For the year ended
March 312023

452.70
(243.48) (713.74)
209.22 (713.74)

For the year ended
March 312024

For the year ended
March 312023

Profit before tax

Corporate tax rate as per income tax act,1961

Tax on accounting profit

i) Tax effect on losses on which no deferred tax is created
i) Others

Tax Expense

Note 30 : EPS
Earnings per share

1,844.57 (4,316.50)
25.17% 25.17%
464.28 (1,086.46)

(150.62) 372.73
(H44)
209.22 (713.74)

Both the basic and diluted carnings per share have been caleulated using the profit attributable to sharcholders of the Company as the numerator, ic no adjustments

to profit were necessary in 2024 or 2023

The reconclliation of the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted carnings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in

the caleulation of basic carnings per sharc is as follows:
Particulars

Weighted average numbcer of shares used in basic carnings per share
Shares deemed to be issucd for no consideration in respeet of share-based payments
Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share

I'he numerators and denominators used 1o calculate the basic and diluted PS8 arc as follows:
Profit atiriburable to Sharcholders
Basic and weighted average number of Fquity shares outsianding during the year
Nominal value of cquity share
Basic & Dilutedt 1XPS (in Rs)

Balance as on

Balance as on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
38,15,978 38,15,978
38,165,978 38,15,078
1,635 36 (3,002.76)
Numbers 3815978 34,15,978
INR 10 10
42,86 — (94.41)




A27 Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements fot the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 31: Related Party

Note 31.1: Names of related parties

I) Holding company

A27 Infra Engineering Limited

IT) Subsidiaries of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

1. A27 Infraservices Limited

2. Blackrock Waste Processing Private Limited

3. A27 Powercom Limited

4. Mansi Bijlee & Rice Mills Limited

5. Magic Genie Services Limited (Under the Process of Strike Off)

6. A2Z Maintenance & Engineering Services Limited and Satya Builders (Association of person)

IIT) Associate of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited
1. A2Z Waste Management (Nainital) Private Limited

2. Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
3. A2Z Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

IV) Subsidiaries of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

1. A2Z Waste Management (Merrut) Limited

2. A27 Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited

3. A2Z Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited

4. A27Z Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

5. A2Z Waste Management (Balia) Limited

6. A27 Waste Management (Fatehpur) Limited

7. A27 Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

8. A27, Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited

9. A27 Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

10. A27 Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited

11. A27 Waste Management (Dhanbad) Private Limited

12. A27 Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

13. A27 Waste Management (Ahmedabad) Limited (Under the Process of Strike Off)
14. Farth Enviornment Management Setvices Private Limited
15. Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

16. Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited




A27Z Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

V) Subsidiaries of A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited
1. Magic Genie Smartech Solutions Limited

2. Rishikesh Waste Management Limited

VI) Subsidiaries
1. Ecogreen linvirotech Solutions Limited (49% along with management control)

2. A27. Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited
3. A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited
4. Vswach Environment (Aligarh) Private Limited

5. Vsapients Techno Services Private Limited (wef 21.02.2023)

VII) Directors and KMP of the Company
1. Mr. Amit Mittal, Director

2. Ms. Priya Goel, Director (Till 30.09.2023)
3. Mrs. Dipali Mittal, Whole Time Director
4. Mrs. Atima Khanna, Director

5. Ms. Chaitali Sharma, Director
6. Mr. Vikas Agarwal, Director

VIII) Private Companies in which a Director or Manager ot his Relative is a Member or Director
Mt. Amit Mittal or his Relatives
1. Devdhar Trading & Consultants Private Limited

2. Mestric Consultants Private Limited

XTI) Directors and KMP of the Holding Company

1. Mr. Amit Mittal (Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer)

2. Mr. Surender Kumar Tuteja (Non- executive independent ditector) ( ll 18.08.2023 )
3. Ms. Atima Khanna (Non-executive independent director)

4. Mrs. Dipali Mittal (Non-Executive Director)

5. Mr. Ashok IKumar Saini (Non-Executive Director) (till July 20, 2022)

6. Mr. Arun Gaur (Non-Executive Director)

7. Mr. Manoj Tiwari (Non-Executive Director w.e.f. July 20, 2022)

8. Mr. Atul Kumar Agarwal (Compliance Officer and Company Secretary)

9. Ms. Ritu Goyal (Non- executive independent director) (w.e.f 11.08.2023)

10. Mr. Parmatma Singh Rathore (Non- executive independent director) (w.e.f 11.08.2023)

11. Mr. Lalit Kumar (Chief Financial Officer)




A27. Infraservices Limited
Notes to the financials statements fur the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 31.2 : Related Party Transaclions

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Subsidiarics/ | Associate of . Subsidiaries/ | Associate of
R Holding X

Fellow Holding KMP Company Fellow Holding KMP

Subsidiaries Company DAY gubsidiaries Company

Particulars Holding
Company

Services Rendered-
A27 Infra Lingineering imited (167.99) (1.902.47)

Remuncration and sitting fees paid- 4
Amit Mictal 5l 2
Atima khanna 1000 1101
Chetali Sharma - 190 1180

Provision created
Greeneffect Waste Management 1imted - - 3.415.93

Asset written off
-Magic Genie Services Limited
Greeneffect Waste Management inuted . - . 3.475.62

Loan taken repaid
A27/. Powercom limited - . 8.00
Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills 1.td. .55

Loan Taken

A2/, Waste Management (Iudhiana) 1imited
Mestric Consultants Pvel.td. 5 :
Amit Mittal : > 1,192.00
Dipali Mittal = . 100.00

Fund Transferred/includes expenses incurred on
behalf of the company-

A27. Waste Management (Ludhiana) §imited - 5
A27. Infra lingincering Limited 4,225.78 . = 4.064.12
Vsapients Techno Services Private Limited 1.00
I:co Green Linvirotech solutions Limited . 5.295.73 1,780.56
A27, Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited 166.08 = 126.74
Miya Goel - 150.00

111.22

Fund Received/ includes Expenses incured on
behalf of company

A27, Infra ingincering Limited 4,283.73 - . 3.941.20
A27, Waste Management (T.udhiana) Limited
A27. Infra lingineering Limited S z
A2/, Waste Management (Aligarh) Limiied 165.73 . 59 44
lico Green Fnvirotech solunons Lamied 2.408.76 . 1,195.92

Interest income IND AS
A27. Waste Management (1Ludhiana) Limited 14.54 1290
lico Green linvirotech solutions bimited 1.32 . 1.18
A27, Waste Management (Aligach) Limited 56.51 - - 50.14

Interest Expenses on Loan taken
Priva Gocl 19.37
Dipali Mittal (.71
Amit Mittal 3749

Interest Expenses on Loan paid
Prya Gocl 1937

Balance outstanding as at the end of the period-

Investment in equity share capital
lico Green linvirotech solutions Jamited 245 245
A2/, Waste Management (Iudhiana) Limited 3.50) 3.50
Vsapients Techno Services Private Tamited .00 14N}

Vswach invironment (Aligarh) Private Tamited 1.00 1.0
A2/, Waste Management (Aligarh) Linuted 4.0 4,10}




A27 Infraservices Limited

Notes to the finuncials statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Unless vtherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Investment in Preference share/debentures (Equity

portion)

1.co Gireen Pnvicotech solutions Limited 103.04 103.64

A27. Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limied 125,77 125,77

A27. Waste Management (Laudhbiana) Limired 55.66 55.66

A2/, Waste Management (Mlugirh) imited 34991 34991

Investment in Preference share/debentures (Debt

portion)

lico Green Envirotech solutions Limited 13,51 12.19

A27. Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limiced 63.46 56.45

A27. Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited 68.22 60.68

A2/, Waste Management (Aligarch) Limited 511.62 455.12

Creditors-

A2/, Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited 169.99 170.34

Advance from customer

A27. Inira Lngineering Limited DNIRII, 2.130.02

Other Financial Liabitics-

A2 Waste Management (Aligach) Limited 32.11 32.11

lico Green Lnvirotech solutions ] imited 137.52 3,024.48

A27. Waste Management (Nainital) Timited 5.00 5.0
Vsapients Techno Services Private ] imited 1.00

A27. Waste Management{Jaunpur) Limited 123.74 123.74
Unsecured Loan Given-

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited 3,415.93 3.415.93
lenlfcsh Waste Mn.nn!z,cmcnt Limited (l'ormerly known 4400 44.00

as A27. Powertech Limited) (we f. December 19, 2020)

/}2% M:}intcnnﬂCc & lingincering Services Limited & 44519 445.19

Satya Builder (AOP)

A2/ Waste Management (Judhiana) Limited 9.44 9.43




A27Z. Infrascivices Limited
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended Maich 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Interest Qutstanding on Loan Given-

Greenefleet Waste Managemont imited

A2/ Powercom Lannted 131 131

Rishikesh Waste Nanagement Limited 13.39 1339

A27 Mantenance & Ingmeciing Services bamited &
Sarva Butlder (AOP)

A27 Waste Management (L udhana) 1imited 1.85 1.85

Provision for doubtful loans

Greeneflect Waste Management Limited 341593 341593

Borrowings-

A27. Powercom Lamited 7101 7L

Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills J.id 2547 25.47

Priva Gocl 150100

Amit Mittal 1192400

Dipali Miual 10,40

Unbilled receivable

A27. Infra Lingincering Lamited 3.060.65 - - 3,228.64

Debtor-

A27 Infra Engnneering 1imited

Greencffect Waste Management Limited 248.85 246.35

A27, Waste Management (Balia) Limited 5.97 5.97

A27. Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited - 9.63 - - 9.63 -

A27. Waste Management (Mirzapur) imited - 1.28 1.28

A27. Waste Management (Fatchpur) Limited 212 212

A27 Waste Managmnet (Badaun ) Lid - 1.57 157

A27. Waste Management (Sambhal) 1.td, = 2.00 - e - 2.00 o

A27, Waste Managment (Dhanbad) 1.ed .82 11,82

A27, Waste Managment (Moradabad) 1..d ; 0.74 074
A27. Waste Management(launpur) 1.td. =

Interest Outstanding on Loan taken-

A2z powercom 1.td - 34.05 - - 34.05

NMansi Bijlee and Rice Mills Ttd. - 3.16 - - 316 -

Mestric Consultants Pve.led, 0.02 11,02

A27, Waste Management (Nainital) Limited 3.98 3.98

Priva Gocl E = E . % E 19.37

Amit Mittal 37.49

Dipali Mittal 0.71

Remuneration Pavable

Amit Mittal - 6,78

Chaitali Sharma .81 0.81

Atima khanna(Sitting fees) - - - 1,901 - - 1.10




A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 32 : Financial risk management

(1) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial assers and financial liabifities measured ac fair value in the starement of Granciad position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hicearchy. The three
Pevels are defined based an the observability ol significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadusted) inactive markets for financial instruments

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
obscrvable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: [ onc or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the insteument is included i level 3

(ii) Financial Instruments by Category

Ior amortised cost instruments, cartving value represents the best estimate of fair value,

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars FVPL FVOCI Amortisced cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial Assets
Investments in Preference shares - 76.97 . - 68.64
Trade Receivables 3,272.25 4,298.19
Cash and Cash cquivalents - 18.03 514.80
Loans - 887.50 888.26
Other Iinancial Assct - . 4,932.07 4.348.13
Total Financial Assets - - 9,186.81 - - 10,118.02
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 2,160.93 - 1,482.37
“I'rade payables : 3,396.60 - - 3,108.62
Orther Financial Liabilitics - - 938.79 - 3,835.59
Total Financial Liabilities - - 6,496.32 - - 8,426.58

(iii) Risk Management

The Company’s activitics exposc it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. "This note explains the sources of risk which the cntity is exposed to and how the
entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Bank deposits, diversification of assct base,
credit limits and collateral.

o Cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables, . )
Credit risk ) : Agceing analysis
financial asscets measured at amortised cost -

e . e Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilitics . ot
. forccasts borrowing facilitics

Recognised financial assets and liabilities not

. . . Cas -ecasting 1 g ract/hedging
denominated in Indian rupee (INR) ash flow forecasting orward contract/hedging

Market risk - foreign exchange

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Cross currency fix rate swaps
Market risk - sceurity price Investments in cquity securitics Scasitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of
dircctors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas, such as forcign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and investment of excess liquidity.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The. Credit risk arises from cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables,
investments carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions. T'he Company’s maximum cxposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying
amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, ideatified cither individually or by the Company, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available ar reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or teports on customers and other counterpartics are
obrained and used. The Company’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterpartics

The Company’s receivables comprises of trade reecivables. During the periods presented, the Company made no write-offs of trade receivables and it does not
expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off. 'The Company has certain trade receivables that have not been

scrtled by the contractual due dare but are not considered to be impaired

" INR (lacs)
Particular
Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Not morc than 30 days 1.760.28 2,246.46
NMore than 30 days but not more than 60 days 47.92 348.27
Morc than 60 days but not more than 90 days 115.46 2.02
Morce than 90 days 1,348.59 1,701.44
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A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

I respeet of trade and other recavables, the Company is not exposed o any significant credit risk exposure 1o any single counterparty or any Company of

counterpartics having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a farge number ot customers in various industrics and geographical arcas Rased on

historical information about customer default rates, management consider the eredit quality of tade receivables that are not past due o impaired to be good

Vhe credir risk for cash and cash cquivalents, murual funds, and derivate financial instruments s considered negligible, since the counterpartics are veputable

organisations with high quality external credir ratings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the ycar 33407 334.27
Changes in provision
Balance as at the end of the year 334.27 334.27

B. Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilitics to mect obligations when due. Duce to the nature of the business, the Company maintains Aexibility in funding by maintaining availability
under committed facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash cquivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes
into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addidon, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to mecet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

"T'he tables below analyse the Company’s financial labilities into relevant maturity borrowings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial
labilitics. T'he amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

March 31, 2024 Lesspient 1-2 year 2-3 year Morcithan s Total

year years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 2,160.93 = = 2,160.93
‘I'rade payables 3,396.60 . 3,396.60
Other ['inancial ] tabilitics 938.79 - 938.79
Total 6,496.32 o - - 6,496.32
March 31, 2023 Less than i 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Total

year years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,482.37 : - 1,482.37
‘I'rade payables 3,108.62 3,108.62
Other IFinancial ] iabilitics 3,835.59 3,835.59
Total 8,426.58 - - - 8,426.58

(a) Interest rate risk

(i) Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimisc interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 2024, the Company is exposed to changes in
market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. ‘The Company’s investments in Iixed Deposits all pay fixed interest rates

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowing ]
lVixed rate borrowing, 2,160.93 1.482.37
Total borrowings 2,160.93 1,482.37
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit o loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest sensitivity®

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps 21,61 14.82
Y 1 |

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basts points (100 bys) (21.61) (14.82)

* [Tolding all other variables constant {/NSIE_{\) N . g
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A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 33 : Capital Management Policics and Procedures

Ifor the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issucd equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Company’ s capital management objectives are:

¢ o ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

* to provide an adequate return to sharcholders

by pricing products and scrvices commensurately with the level of risk.

‘The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the equirements of the financial covenants. o
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, ‘I'he
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is nct debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between
20% and 40%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operations.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings 2,160.93 1,482.37
‘I'rade Payables 3,396.60 3,108.62
|ess: cash and cash equivalents 18.03 514.80
Net debt 5,539.50 4,076.20
Iiquity 7,201.43 5.492.01
Capital and net debt 12,740.93 9,568.21
Gearing ratio 43.48% 42.60%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.




A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless othenwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 34 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(a) Disaggregation of revenue into operating scpments amd geographical areas tor the year ended March 31, 2024

Segment Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Other Revenue ‘Tolal

Revenue from operations
Revenue from opemtion and maintenance services 22,009.77 22,009.77
Other operating income
Senap sale N
[Total 22,009.77 . 22,009.77

(b) Out of the total revenue recognised undee IND AS-115 ducing the year, INR 2200877 lacs is recognised over a period of time

<) Movement in Expecred Credit Loss during the year:

Provision on Trade -
Particulars receivables covered Prowsm:s::l:lon(mc(
under Ind AS 115
Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 221.90)
Changes in allowance for expected credir loss:
Pravision/ (reversal) of allowance for expected credit loss 32513
Additional provision (net) towards credit impaired receivables
Write off as bad debts
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 547.03 -

() Contract balances:

(i) Movement in contract balances during the ycar:

Particulars Tr?de Contract assets Contract liabilities
Receivable

Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 1,298 19

Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 337225

Net increase/ (decrease) (1,025.94)

(if) Reveaue recognised ducing the year from opening balance of contract liabilitics amounts to INR Nil.
(iil) Revenue cecognised during the year from the performance obligation satisfied in previous year (arising out of contract modifications) amounts to INR Nil

(¢) Cost to obtain the contract

(i) Amount of amortisation recognised m Profit and Loss during the year 2023-24: Nil

(i) Amount recognised as assets as at March 31, 2024 : Nil

(B Reconciliation of contracted price with revenue during the year:

Opening contracted price of orders as at April 1, 2023 57,790.63
Add:

Iresh orders/change orders received (net) 6,507.49
L

{nilers completed dunng the year 84041
Cloging contracted price of orders as at March 31, 2024* 46571
"Tunal Revenue recognised during the year: 22,0977
I y=s Revenue out of orders completed during the year 242015
Ievenne out of orders under execution at the end of the year (1) 19,589.62
Hevenue recogmised upto previous year (flom orders pending completion at the end of the year) (1)

Decrease due to exchange rate movements (net) (111)

Balance eevenue to be recogmenid in future viz Order book (1V) 24874 10
Closing contracted price of orders as at March 31, 2024% (I+1I+111+1V) 4446372

“including full value of partially executed contracts

() Remaining pecformance oblyatons: The agregate amount of rransaction price allocated to remaining pecformance obligations and expected conversion of the same
into revenuc is as follows:

Pacticulars Foal ixpected conversion in revenue

Upto I Year More than [ year

I'ransaction Price allocated to

remaining performance obligation HATL 17562100 6,992.00




A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unless otherwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lucs)

Note 35: Corporate social responsibility

\s per section 135 ol the companices Vet 2013, a company, mecoing the eligihiliny criterin, necds to spend at least 290 of its average net profis for the immediately
Y 4 i 5 8 A

preceding three fimancial years on coporate social responsibility(CSR) activities. s the Company had a loss in the Financial Year 2022-23 und it docs not meet any

criternt ol the Scection 135 of the companies et 2013, therefore the company isn’t obligated o undertake CSR activities or incur CSR expenditure in the inanctal

vear 23-24
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross amount to be spent during the year for average profits for last three preceding vear - 12.96
Amount spent during the vear 13.00
Opening balance of unspent amount (11.59) (0.55)
Closing balance of unspent amount (0.59) (0.59)
Note 36 : Financial ratios
S1. No. Ratio At March 31, At March 31, Variance Reason for variance
2024 2023

] Current ratio 1.10 0.93 18.92"% NA

il Debt-cquity ratio .30 0.27 LT NA

i Debt service coverage ratio (2.38) 2.78 -185.64%0 Vartance duc to increase in short term
borrowings.

Y Return on cquity ratio 0.01 (0.02) ~153.50% Variance is on account of profit in
current year.

v Inventory turnover ratio 1,330.18 304.36 337.04% Yariance is on account of decrcasc in
nventory.

U ‘T'rade recetvables turnover ratio 1.45 .88 65.19% In current year,company has paid-off
trade receivable & increase provision
for debtors.

vii ‘I'rade payables turnover ratio 0.48 0.21 129.84"% In current year,company's provisions
for expense and sundry creditors has
been increased.

viit Net capital turnover ratio 26.60 (23.78) <211 HH"y Variance is on account of increasc in
revenue in current year.

X Nect profit ratio 0.07 (0.20) -136.84" Variance duc to increase in profit in
current year.

X Return on capital employed 0.21 0.39 -45.42% Variance is on account of increase in
profit in current year.

X1 Return on investment NA NA NA NA
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A2Z INFRASERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unless otherwisc stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Formulac for computation of ratios arc as follows:-

Sl No Ratios Formulae
1 Current ratio Current assets = Current liabihties
2 Debt-cquity ratio Fotal debt = Sharcholder's equity
3 Debt service coverage ratio Larnings available For debt serviee® + Debt Scrvicek*
4 Return on equity ratio (Nt profitafter tax - Preference Dividend (i any)) + Average sharcholder's equity
5 [nventory turnover eatio Cost ol goods sold or sales + Average Inventory
6 Trade receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales + Average accounts receivables
7, Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases = Average trade payables
8 Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales + Working capital
9 Net profit ratio Net profitafier tax + Revenue (rom operations
10 Return on capital employed Iiarnings before interest and Taxes + Capital employed ¥k
1 Return on investment (Current value of investment - Cost of investment) + Cost of mvestment
* liarning for Debt Service = Net Profit afier taxes*k + Non-cash operating expensces like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest +
other adjustments like loss on sale of IFixed assets cte.
Fok Debe service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments
o “Net Profit after (ax™ means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.
Hoketok Capital limployed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

Note 37 : Post-reporting date events
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting cvents have occurred between the 31 March 2024 reporting date and the date of authorisation 14th May, 2024,

Note 38 : Authorisation of financial statements
‘Ihe Fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (including comparatives) were approved by the board of dircctors on 14th May 2024,

For A.B. Sanwalka & Co For and on behalf of the board of directors
Chartered Accountants
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